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What/Who IEPA is

IEPA is a trade association representing the interests of electric generators and certified independent power marketers in California.  Although the association is purportedly non-profit, its membership certainly is not.
  

The majority of IEPA’s members are owners and operators of exempt wholesale generators and qualifying facility projects using cogeneration, predominantly in the form of natural gas fired generation.  Some of these supply resources are scheduled through the CAISO by the large investor-owned utilities (“IOU”), while others participate directly in various markets throughout the western region, including CAISO’s Ancillary Services, Adjustment and Supplemental Energy markets.  IEPA’s members collectively own and operate more than 20,000 MW of installed generating capacity participating in California’s competitive markets (42.5% of California’s generating capacity under CAISO control), and many have pursued and received approval for or are actively pursuing new project developments through the California Energy Commission.  In addition, power marketers—significant participants in the California markets—are also included within IEPA’s membership.  Other members, consisting of consultants and law firms, provide support services for the industry.

As the entities directly participating in California’s troubled wholesale electric markets, IEPA’s membership has an immediate and substantial interest in the instant FERC proceeding and has the ability, means and economic motives to protect those interests.  As market participants, IEPA’s members are directly impacted by proposals to change or delay the CAISO settlement processes, and resulting refund orders and penalties, as determined under the FERC’s statutory authority.

Unless specified otherwise, all further reference to IEPA include its members, acting individually or in concert with others.

One Summary of  How  IEPA  Violated  the
Law in Conducting Operations in California

In sum, during the spring, summer, fall and winter of 2000, and spring of 2001, IEPA acted as a "trust" composed of electricity generators and traders exercising market power to unlawfully manipulate the California wholesale electricity market, resulting in grossly inflated wholesale electricity prices throughout the state and much of the western United States.
 

This result was accomplished by, inter alia, improperly using confidential real time generator capacity, use, and maintenance data, along with transmission system flow data to “game” the wholesale electricity market by withholding electrical generating capacity from the California Power Exchange’s forward markets, by improperly parking power with affiliates in other states which was later resold in California at inflated rates, by scheduling previously unplanned plant outages to coincide with other plants’ planned maintenance shutdowns, and by scheduling transmission flows to cause or exacerbate congestion.

Among other things, the improper use of confidential real time data was in violation of the California Tariff authorizing IEPA to sell wholesale electricity within the state.  

The body of evidence supporting these allegations includes, first, the 11-01-00 FERC order expressly finding that electricity prices in California have been maintained at “unjust and unreasonable” levels.

Secondly, in its 11-22-00 response to the 11-01-00 FERC order, the California Public Utilities Commission concluded that due to IEPA's market manipulation customers of electricity supplied through the California Power Exchange had been overcharged more than $4 billion dollars during the summer of 2000.
  

Thirdly, in its 11-22-00 response to the 11-01-01 FERC order, even the California Independent System Operator (CAISO), which manages California’s transmission system infrastructure known as the “power grid,” found that the summer 2000 prices resulted from the exercise of intolerable levels of market power. 

In Other Words

IEPA's misconduct starting in May 2000 consisted of the exercise of market power, improper use of confidential information, manipulations, and other unlawful actions in violations of state law.  For example, IEPA unlawfully shared confidential real time data in violation of ISO Tariffs and thereafter “gamed” the market, which enabled IEPA to charge “unjust and unreasonable” prices for and otherwise benefit from the inflated price for electricity.  

Background:  The California Wholesale Electricity Marketstc \l2 "A.
The California Wholesale Electricity Markets
In 1996 California deregulated its electricity industry and required privately owned utility companies to divest themselves of their generating plants.  The avowed purpose of deregulation was to introduce competition into the electricity markets, thus reducing rates.  In fact, however, a handful of participants in this recently deregulated industry have taken advantage of structural flaws in the system and improperly obtained confidential competitor information to artificially inflate prices for electricity, yielding themselves billions of dollars in windfall profits at the expense of California consumers, in violation of their operating Tariff as well as other federal and state laws.
 

As part of the deregulation, several new entities were created to facilitate the operation of the new market.  California’s investor owned utilities (the Utilities)
 were required to purchase electricity for their customers from IEPA through a market known as the California Power Exchange (PX), which functions through a variety of forward contracts and real time markets.  Under the California deregulatory scheme, until just recently the Utilities were required to purchase power through the PX and prohibited from independently contracting outside this market.

The deregulated market also led to the creation of CAISO, which was supposed to be an “independent” non-profit corporation.  Until January 2001 CAISO's managing board included representatives from among the generators/ traders, including IEPA.  CAISO is now controlled by the state government through the Governor’s appointees. At its inception CAISO was to be an “independent technical and professional organization” created to manage the flow of electricity and ensure reliability along the long distance, high-voltage power lines that make up the bulk of California’s transmission system.  Today, CAISO is controlled by stakeholders.  Under the current CAISO governance scheme only one stakeholder, the State of California, a political organization as opposed to an “independent technical and professional organization,” controls the board.  Approximately 75% of California’s electricity is distributed through the CAISO managed  “power grid.”  CAISO monitors electrical loads (i.e., demand) on an on-going basis and tries to ensure an adequate supply of power to meet that demand.

CAISO accomplishes this by maintaining a Real Time Imbalance Market (the Real Time Market).  When CAISO receives bids from suppliers that are insufficient to meet the demand for power at a particular time, it must accept any bid, which then sets the market-clearing price for that hour.  Under the single price auction system used by CAISO, all sellers of electricity in the Real Time Market automatically receive the market clearing price, which is the (second) highest price paid in the market, even if they were willing to sell and had in fact bid to sell electricity at lower prices. This mechanism allows sophisticated market participants like IEPA, with full and accurate knowledge of what individual participants are doing, to game the market by withholding bids thus maximizing the clearing price.

The Real Time Market was not designed to handle large transactions, but merely to provide a mechanism to correct short-term imbalances in supply and demand.  IEPA nonetheless pushed a substantial portion of the daily wholesale electricity sales into this market by underbidding capacity to the forward market leaving wholesale customers no alternative to obtaining the power required to satisfy their retail customers’ demand. 

CAISO also manages the Replacement Reserve Market, which is supposed to be used to balance supply and demand of electricity, and provides fixed premiums to sellers for having available capacity.  If called upon by the ISO to deliver energy, these sellers also receive the Real Time Market price.  Thus, if generators know that capacity is short, they have an incentive to withhold supplies from the spot markets and push as much as possible into the Replacement Reserve Market.  Access to real time generating information facilitates such “gaming” of the markets by demonstrating, in real time, available competing supply.

In times of high demand, CAISO has the authority to purchase energy from out-of-state sources, as to which there is no operative price cap.  CAISO was forced to do this during the summer of 2000.  IEPA could and did export electricity to surrounding markets in order to create artificial shortages and drive up prices in the California markets.  Then IEPA could and did resell that electricity to CAISO at inflated and uncapped prices.  As the PX Compliance Committee explained:

“During periods of high Out-of-Market purchases, when prices are above the Real-Time energy price cap, in-state generators have an incentive to export energy out of California.  Surrounding control areas can effectively park that energy for resale to the CAISO Out-of-Market calls and return it to the state.”  (11-01-00 “PX Compliance Report,” p. 44.)

Notably, the summer of 2000 witnessed an approximately 370% increase in exports from the California energy market, despite the very high prices and short supplies that existed in the state. 

CAISO defines “market power” as the ability to significantly influence market prices and cause them to vary from competitive levels for a material period of time. IEPA could and did exercise market power by withholding electricity, moving electricity out of the California markets, and pricing and bidding its product in ways that impede the efficiency of the market. 

Notably, the California energy market consists of a relatively small number of firms, some of which control a substantial fraction of the total generating capacity.  IEPA controls approximately 42.5% of the available generating capacity under CAISO control. This minority of suppliers facilitates the exercise of market power during periods of high demand, even when there is not a true scarcity of available generating capacity.  In addition, the relatively inelastic demand for energy further facilitates the exercise of such market power.  

Another or a Further Description of IEPA's Unlawful Acts

Prior to 05-22-00, CAISO began supplying the Western Systems Coordinating Council (WSCC), an organization that includes IEPA, with real time industry data as to electricity generating levels, known as metering data, and transmission system flow data, known as scheduling data, pertaining to individual market participants. Through the WSCC internet web site, as a wholesale electricity market participant IEPA obtained access to real time data as to actions being taken by individual members and competitors, although access to such data was forbidden by the ISO Tariff.  When requested by various governmental entities, including the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), the WSCC eventually refused access. 

The violations of law by IEPA include the following sections of the CAISO/FERC Tariff:

"Meter Data supplied by an ISO [
] metered entity shall be made available by the ISO to the scheduling coordinator representing such ISO metered entity and other authorized users identified in its meter services agreement, but shall not be disclosed to any third party except as otherwise may be required by law, FERC any local regulatory authority or other provision of this ISO Tariff."  (§ 10.2.6.)

"The ISO shall maintain the confidentiality of all of the documents, data and information provided to it by any Market Participant that are treated as confidential or commercially sensitive under Section 20.3.2; provided, however, that the ISO need not keep confidential: (1) information that is explicitly subject to data exchange through WEnet pursuant to Section 6 of this ISO Tariff; (2) information that the ISO or the Market Participant providing the information is required to disclose pursuant to this ISO Tariff, or applicable regulatory requirements (provided that the ISO shall comply with any applicable limits on such disclosure); or (3) information that becomes available to the public on a non-confidential basis (other than as a result of the ISO’s breach of this ISO Tariff)."  (§ 20.3.1.)

"The following information provided to the ISO by Scheduling Coordinators shall be treated by the ISO as confidential:  

  (a)
Individual bids for Supplemental Energy;

  (b)
Individual Adjustment Bids for Congestion Management which are not designated by the scheduling coordinator as available;

  (c)
Individual bids for Ancillary Services;

  (d)
Transactions between Scheduling Coordinators;

  (e)
Individual Generator Outage programs unless a Generator makes a change to its Generator Outage program which causes Congestion in the short term (i.e. one month or less), in which case, the ISO may publish the name of that Generator."  (§ 20.3.2.)

"No Market Participant shall have the right hereunder to receive from the ISO or to review any documents, data or other information of another Market Participant to the extent such documents, data or information is to be treated as in accordance with Section 20.3.2; provided, however, a market Participant may receive and review any composite documents, data, and other information that may be developed based upon such confidential documents, data, or information, if the composite document does not disclose such confidential data or information relating to an individual Market Participant and provided, however, that the ISO may disclose information as provided for in its bylaws."  (§ 20.3.2.)


Part of the CAISO Tariff is the ISO Market Monitoring & Information Protocol (MMIP).  The MMIP's purported objective is to set forth the work-plan and rules under which markets can be monitored to identify abuses of market power.  The MMIP applies to IEPA as a CAISO market participant.  Under the MMIP, IEPA engaged in  

"[a]nomalous market behavior, which is defined as behavior that departs significantly from the normal behavior in competitive markets that do not require continuing regulation or as behavior leading to unusual or unexplained market outcomes.  Evidence of such behavior may be derived from a number of circumstances, including:

"MMIP 2.1.1.1  withholding of generation capacity under circumstances in which it would normally be offered in a competitive market;

"MMIP 2.1.1.2  unexplained or unusual redeclarations of availability by Generators;

"MMIP 2.1.1.3  unusual trades or transactions;

"MMIP 2.1.1.4  pricing and bidding patterns that are inconsistent with prevailing supply and demand conditions, e.g., prices and bids that appear consistently excessive for or otherwise inconsistent with such conditions; and 

"MMIP 2.1.1.5  unusual activity or circumstances relating to imports from or exports to other markets or exchanges.

"The Market Surveillance Unit shall evaluate, on an ongoing basis, whether the continued or persistent presence of such circumstances indicates the presence of behavior that is designed to or has the potential to distort the operation and efficient functioning of a competitive market, e.g., the strategic withholding and redeclaring of capacity, and whether it indicates the presence and exercise of market power or of other unacceptable practices."  (MMIP § 2.1.1.)

“Gaming', or taking unfair advantage of the rules and procedures set forth in the PX or ISO Tariffs, Protocols or Activity Rules, or of transmission constraints in periods in which exist substantial Congestion, to the detriment of the efficiency of, and of consumers in, the ISO Markets.  `Gaming' may also include taking undue advantage of other conditions that may affect the availability of transmission and generation capacity, such as loop flow, facility outages, level of hydropower output or seasonal limits on energy imports from out-of-state, or actions or behaviors that may otherwise render the system and the ISO markets vulnerable to price manipulation to the detriment of their efficiency."  (MMIP § 2.1.3.)

IEPA used the WSCC to share access to and use real time information, notwithstanding the fact that its publication and use violated CAISO’s operating procedures, as set forth in tariffs and protocols filed with and approved by FERC, and made part of the contracts by which IEPA was authorized to sell electricity to the PX.  Those tariffs and protocols required that such data be kept confidential specifically to prevent gaming the market as IEPA was able to do and did. On 10-29-00, the Dow Jones Work. Com Newswire reported:

“Electricity generators may have used real-time plant activity reports from the state’s grid operator to their advantage in California’s wholesale electricity market, according to an official with the Western Systems Coordinating Council.  

* * *

“At issue is real-time information the California Independent System Operator provided the Western systems Coordinating Council, a governmental [sic] organization that monitors electricity reliability in the western U.S., about power plant activity in the state.

“The real-time information allows market participants . . . to access data via an internet site that shows how much capacity a plant with more than 200 megawatts has online at any given moment. . . . .

“The information was intended to be used to monitor electric reliability on the grid . . .

“Last month, however, the ISO’s attorneys alerted the WSCC that the ‘data is being used against them and to game the market,’ according to Bill Commish, director of dispatch with the WSCC.  


* * * 

“Commish said generators could use the information to withhold supply and drive up power prices or to identify transmission congestion in a particular region and use that to gouge customers.

“However, the ISO, which controls about 75% of the state’s power grid and real-time market, may have violated a FERC rule because it is required to keep such information confidential for 90 days, an ISO attorney told the WSCC.

“Beginning Monday, the ISO will no longer provide such information to the WSCC or other market participants.”

Starting on or about 05-22-00, IEPA used real time data to exercise market power by, among other things, reducing output, strategically underbidding supply to the forward markets, and exporting electricity from California to drive up the Real Time Market price and other market prices.  As a direct result of this improper access to and use of information, the price of wholesale electricity spiked sharply upwards on 05-22-00 and has remained at artificially inflated prices ever since.  FERC, CPUC, and CAISO's Department of Market Analysis, have all now concluded that IEPA and other market participants should be excluded from the CAISO board.  As described by the North County Times on 10-19-00:

“A case study of San Diego County’s two big power plants has concluded that they held back from full production of electricity in June, even as prices skyrocketed and California’s power manager was scrambling for supplies to prevent blackouts.

“To the study’s author . . . the low production in San Diego County is clear evidence that the companies that generate and trade electricity in CA were creating an artificial shortage to drive up prices.

* * * 

"McCullough’s hour-by-hour analysis of power output for June found that the Encina plant in Carlsbad generated 44 percent of the megawatt hours that it could have during periods when prices were higher than the plant’s cost of production.  The South Bay power plant in Chula Vista generated 61 percent of what would be expected under traditional economic theory.

"Economists estimate it costs $45-$55 per megawatt hour to generate electricity at the plants. The wholesale price in June averaged $120 per megawatt hour.  

"A separate analysis conducted by the North County Times revealed `mysterious cutbacks in Carlsbad during a heady market of sky-high prices.'


* * * 

“Investigators and market analysts have documented extensive evidence that electricity traders have waited until prices rose on California’s market this summer before they would commit their power plants to production.

“‘We did see evidence of withholding in the bidding,’ according to Jim Detmers, the ISO’s operations chief.”

In addition, IEPA used real time information about actions being taken by individual participants and competitors to improperly withhold electrical supplies from the forward markets operated by the PX, thus taking advantage of the ISO’s need to balance supply and demand in the spot market and thereby benefit from the single price auction system by obtaining the highest price paid in any given period.  Moreover, IEPA sold or "parked" electricity with affiliates in other states to artificially drive up prices in the California markets.  That electricity was then sold back into the California markets at the artificially inflated prices unlawfully created.  These tactics forced buyers in the California wholesale electricity market to purchase more than 30% of their electricity needs in the inflated Spot Market, rather than the less than 5% that should have been sold in that market, which was  intended to only satisfy last minute energy demand fluctuations. 

Results of IEPA's Unlawful Activitiestc \l2 "C.
Results of Defendants’ Activities
From late May 2000 through May 2001, IEPA's activities raised wholesale electricity prices to record levels, well above the rates that would have prevailed in a competitive marketplace and disproportionate to the costs of generating that electricity.

As CAISO's Market Surveillance Committee (MSC) concluded in its 09-05-00 report (the MSC Report), during the months of May and June 2000 revenues from the sale of CAISO loads in the California energy market were 37% and 182%, respectively, above the revenues that would have been generated under competitive pricing conditions.  (MSC Report, p. 2.)  The MSC Report unambiguously concluded that market participants (i.e., IEPA) exercised a “significant amount of market power” in the California energy markets, beginning as early as October 1999 and increasing through and including May 2000 and thereafter.  (Id. at pp. 4, 15, 17.)

The average market-clearing price in California’s wholesale markets during August 2000 was $166.24/MWh under moderate load conditions, compared with $32.31/MWh a year earlier.  While load demand conditions in California during August 2000 were slightly higher than in August 1999, they were similar to those during August 1998 when prices were much lower.  Peak demand in August 2000 was lower than in August of either of the prior two years, negating representations by industry leaders that excessive demand caused these price increases.  Indeed, some California electricity producers were only running at 60% of capacity during the so-called emergency periods. 

These price hikes have even been in effect during the middle of the night, when electricity is abundant and demand is low.  Additionally, prices in winter 2000 and spring 2001, when demand for electricity was typically much lower than during the summer months, continued to be substantially in excess of the prior years’ levels and in excess of the levels that should prevail in a competitive marketplace.

The unlawful exercise of market power artificially increased prices to record levels and resulted in huge windfall profits to IEPA.  As reported in the 10-17-00 San Diego Union Tribune, analyst Anatol Feygin of JP Morgan estimated that electricity industry profits from California for the 3 months ended September 30, 2000 could reach $6 billion, even after taking into account cost increases.  Feygin stated, “‘the industry was literally at eight times the profitability of last year ... that is a fortune.’” (Emphasis added.)

For example, one IEPA member, Reliant Energy, reported that its third quarter 2000 earnings topped the 1999-year’s figure by about $110 million.  The same thing is true for Reliant's cohort Dynegy.  Dynegy reported an 83 % in its third quarter 2000 income, as compared to its third quarter 1999 figures.   Profits from Dynegy’s wholesale energy generating and trading division quadrupled to $141.9 million, which represented 80 percent of Dynegy’s overall profits.  “This is the most successful quarter in Dynegy’s history,” reported chairman and chief executive officer Charles ‘Chuck’ Watson.  Other individual IEPA members also obtained large windfall profits during this period. 

As a further example, prior to deregulation, the historical cost to produce a megawatt hour of electricity in San Diego County was approximately $23-45 per MWh.  During the summer of 2000, the Real Time Market price of wholesale electricity frequently reached $750 per MWh resulting in an approximate tripling of SDG&E customers’ bills. In Spring 2001 it rose as high as $2,250 per MWh.

In its 11-01-00 order, FERC concluded that wholesale prices of electricity in California had been at “unjust and unreasonable” levels during the summer of 2000. CAISO and CPUC's responses to the 11-01-01 FERC order both concluded that wholesale prices during the summer of 2000 were due to a substantial exercise of market power by IEPA.
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California consumers were injured, if not devastated, by the manipulated and inflated prices paid for wholesale electricity, since costs were fully passed through to them.  The CPUC’s 11-22-00 report to FERC concluded that the exercise of market power by wholesale producers resulted in a $4 billion dollar overcharge for the delivery of electricity to California during the summer of 2000.  Due to unlawful conduct, some consumers paid approximately $4 billion dollars more for electricity than they otherwise would have, causing great hardship to numerous individuals and businesses. As Congressman Brian Bilbray stated: “Every day that goes by you’ve got small businesses bleeding to death.  People are literally dying financially from this situation.”  (Work.com Newswire (10/21/00).) CARE notes for the record that the approximate $8.9 billion dollars of overcharges under dispute between IEPA and the California parties does not even include this additional $4 billion dollars.

The improper sharing and use of real time wholesale electricity generation and transmission data to withhold generation by unplanned outages and to maintain bidding strategies which led to contrived and artificial shortages, and other manipulative conduct, had the effect of artificially inflating and maintaining wholesale electricity prices above competitive prices allowing IEPA to reap huge illegal profits amounting to in excess of 10 billion dollars, which IEPA refuses to refund, at the expense of California consumers. CARE provides Figure 1 below to quantify actual generation capacity offline due to these manipulations.

Who are the California Parties

The California Parties are the State of California, California Electricity Oversight Board, California Public Utilities Commission, California Department of Water Resources (CARE’s alleged IOU “designated representative” in the purchase of power), and the investor owned utilities San Diego Gas and Electric Company, and Southern California Edison.  Pacific Gas and Electric has continued to act as an independent party in these proceedings, as well as the California Secretary of State.

On February 1, 2001, Assembly Bill (AB) 1 from the First Extraordinary Session (AB 1X) was signed into law.  Wholesale energy prices that had soared to unprecedented levels had caused substantial deterioration in Southern California Edison Company’s (SCE) and Pacific Gas & Electric Company’s (PG&E's) financial condition, leaving them unable to buy all the power needed to serve their customers.  In response to this emergency situation, AB 1X authorizes DWR to purchase electric power for sale directly to retail end-use customers being served by utilities.   When these customers take delivery of DWR’s power, they are deemed to have purchased it.  DWR power is to be allocated for delivery to all classes of retail end-use customers on a pro rata basis, to the extent possible.  

AB 1X contains a number of mechanisms to pay DWR for the electricity it sells, including detailed requirements for the calculation of an amount known as the “California Procurement Adjustment” or “CPA”:

“The commission shall determine that portion of each existing electrical corporation's retail rate effective on January 5, 2001, that is equal to the difference between the generation related component of the retail rate and the sum of the costs of the utility's own generation, qualifying facility contracts, existing bilateral contracts, and ancillary services.  That portion of the retail rate shall be known as the California Procurement Adjustment. The commission shall further determine the amount of the California Procurement Adjustment that is allocable to the power sold by the department.  That amount shall be payable, by each electrical corporation, upon receipt by the electrical corporation of the revenues from its retail end use customers, to  the department for deposit in the Department of Water Resources Electric Power Fund, established by Section 80200 of the Water Code.  The amount determined pursuant to this subdivision shall be known as the Fixed Department of Water Resources Set-Aside.” (Pub. Utilities Code § 360.5.)  

AB 1X also establishes the DWR Electric Power Fund (the Fund) in the State Treasury, and authorizes DWR to issue bonds, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness (collectively, “Bonds”) for certain limited purposes, including:

· Paying the costs of electric power and transmission, scheduling, and other related expenses, or to reimburse expenditures from the Fund for those purposes.

· Repaying to the General Fund certain advances made to DWR for the power purchase program; and

· Establishing or maintaining reserves in connection with the Bonds and paying certain costs incidental to the issuance, payment and security of the Bonds.

Other parts of AB 1X address the issuance of bonds by DWR to finance electricity purchases subject to specific restrictions:

“In no event shall the [DWR] authorize the issuance of bonds … in an aggregate amount greater than the amount calculated by multiplying by a factor of four the annual revenues generated by the California Procurement Adjustment, as determined by the commission pursuant to [Pub. Utilities Code] Section 360.5.” (Water Code § 80130,)

DWR Violated the Federal Power Act

Under section 205(c) of the Federal Power Act (16 U.S.C. § 824d(c)), the DWR long-term energy contracts disclosed through legal action brought by the California Legislature and press requires that these contracts “shall be tendered for filing with the Commission and posted not less than sixty days nor more than one hundred-twenty days prior to the date on which the electric service is to commence.” DWR has failed to comply with this statutory requirement.  Therefore, the Commission must issue an order or stay canceling or suspending such long-term energy contracts and associated IOU rate schedules (yet to be submitted to the Commission). CARE submitted its motion to this effect to the FERC on August 30, 2001.  (Submittal 20010904-0024.)

DWR claims it is not required to provide proper notice prior to execution of such long-term contracts to all the parties to this case and to the public who have a statutory and constitutional right to comment on expenditures of the public’s funds in this manner by DWR. In response to CARE’s California Public Records Act request, DWR claimed that as a state agency it is exempt from the Federal Power Act under Section 201(f), and "[t]o the extent DWR engages in purchases or sales with counterparties who are subject to Federal Power Act jurisdiction, any obligation to file with FERC or otherwise comply with the Act lies with the counterparty to the contract, and not the department.”

DWR's claim of an exemption is unfounded.  DWR is acting as a “designated representative” for the Investor Owned Utilities in the purchase of energy in California:

“In cases where two or more public utilities are required to file rate schedules or certificates of concurrence such public utilities may authorize a designated representative to file upon behalf of all parties if upon written request such parties have been granted Commission authorization therefor.”  (18 CFR § 35.1 (a).)

DWR thus violated the requirements of 18 CFR § 35.1 (4)(e):

“No public utility shall, directly or indirectly, demand, charge, collect or receive any rate, charge or compensation for or in connection with electric service subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission, or impose any classification, practice, rule, regulation or contract with respect thereto, which is different from that provided in a rate schedule required to be on file with this Commission unless otherwise specifically provided by order of the Commission for good cause shown.”

Ample evidence of DWR’s acting as the California IOU’s “designated representative” is provided by DWR’s request to the CPUC for a Revised Revenue Requirement and Power Purchase Costs under Water Code § 80110 and Pub. Utilities Code § 451, and further illustrated by the CPUC’s Administrative Law Judge’s ruling on the 08-07-01 Revenue Requirement of the DWR regarding the IOU SDG&E applications 01-10-044, and 01-01-0045 to the CPUC.  The ruling states:

“SDG&E shall present alternative calculations of the required system average rate increases that (1) collect the DWR-related rate increases over the remaining 5 quarters of the revenue requirement period set forth in Table A-6 (i.e., the fourth quarter of 2001 and the four quarters of 2002), (2) collect the DWR–related rate increases over the next 8 quarters (i.e., the fourth quarter of 2001, the four quarters of 2002, and the first three quarters of 2003), and (3) collect the DWR–related rate increases over the  period from September 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002.”

This is evidence of a clear intent that DWR act as the IOU’s “designated representative” to seek approval from the CPUC “to collect the DWR-related rate increases.”

On 08-30-01, California Secretary of State Bill Jones submitted a letter to bring to the Commission's attention “significant price and market manipulation of electrical energy by several energy-related entities in the administration of California’s Governor Gray Davis.”  (Submittal 20011005-0047.)  In this letter the Secretary states unequivocally:

“I am very concerned that CalISO, in concert or collusion with the Department of Water Resources, is abusing its broad authority over transmission of electrical power over interstate power lines in order to avoid political embarrassment for the Davis Administration. This abuse, because it involves interstate transmission of electrical power, must be investigated by your agency under the authority granted to you by the Federal Power Act.”  (Id.)

The Secretary of State further references an 08-29-01 Dow Jones Newswire article titled Calif ISO Tells Edison To Ramp Down Low-Cost Power Plant, which states:

“California's power grid operator has periodically ordered Southern California Edison to reduce output at a low-cost power plant designed to run at all hours, a practice some said is intended to reduce the state's politically embarrassing need to sell surplus power at a loss. The California Independent System Operator concedes that it has ordered the Edison International (EIX) unit to reduce output at its 1,500-megawatt Mohave coal-fired plant in Nevada several times over the past three months. What's not entirely clear is why. Greg Fishman, spokesman for the ISO, said the ISO is investigating the market circumstances that led to the orders. "We're looking into a lot of different things," Fishman said. "I don't know specifically if the ramping is to allow the DWR to keep its surplus. We're looking at it, but it may be one of several different reasons. It is safe to say there are some market-structure issues we're dealing with." The DWR, responsible for buying power in place of California's ailing utilities, has spent $43 billion on power under long-term contracts. When the power it has locked in exceeds demand, the DWR dumps it at a loss. To date, the department puts its losses at nearly $115 million. A desire to keep that number from growing has led to the orders to ramp down Mohave, one ISO executive said. "As far as I'm concerned, we're being asked to order this unit to ramp down because the DWR bought too much power and doesn't want to sell it," the executive said. "I think it's pretty political." ”

Therefore, as previously described, Governor Davis and the other California parties failed to tender for filing with the Commission and posting not less than sixty days nor more than one hundred-twenty days prior to the date on which the electric service was to commence under DWR power purchases and long-term energy contracts, that they have been duped by the IEPA, as identified in figure 2, below. 

IEPA violated the state’s false claims act in that these parties filed false requests or demands of the state. Figure 2, below,  demonstrates that IEPA has been able to file these false claims against the state in the form of long-term contracts negotiated with the Governor’s office (without legislative and public review) for power for fixed prices far in excess of the cost of production. 

CARE has filed two complaints against IEPA and various publicly owned generators with the Commission over California’s contrived power shortage in dockets EL01-2, and the public agencies identified in EL01-65, and the resulting unjust and unreasonable pricing created by these same parties’ ability to withhold production with impunity from prosecution or even refunds.  
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How IEPA Used DWR to Leverage New Power Plants in California
These long-term contracts provide substantial evidence of IEPA ability to utilize unlawful “market power” to leverage construction of pending generation facilities under consideration by the California Energy Commission (CEC) at 100% public expense. An example of this is Calpine Corp. which under the terms of the 20-year contract signed by the governor on 02/26/01, will (through false claims) fleece all Californians for in excess of $3.5 billion in windfall profits. This contract for 495 MW of peaking power over twenty years at $73/MW amounts to $23/MW over the cost of production which is about 50/MW including natural gas. Over the twenty years of the contract this amounts to two billion dollars of windfall profits for Calpine. Additionally under the terms of the contract Calpine will receive an additional $90 million annually from the state from 2001 to 2006, and an additional $80 million annually from the state from 2006 to 2021, for additional windfall profits of $1.65 billion.  Calpine is being allowed to fleece taxpayers to the tune of $3,650,000,000 over twenty years for energy generation projects that have not yet been proposed, approved, or constructed, demonstrating their intent to defraud the taxpayers. 

Another example of this is Mirant, which will gain about $700 million in windfall profits for its one 18-month contract at $149/MWh for 500MW over 18 months. Both these companies have pending new generation projects before the CEC, and both who CARE has alleged have culpability for the energy crises that resulted when they took their three plants down for scheduled maintenance on June 14, 2000.

The California Parties and IEPA Violated State and Federal LORS

 The Governor, IEPA, and the other California Parties violated environmental LORS, such as the California Environmental Quality Act, the National Environmental Policy Act, the Endangered Species Act, and other LORS requiring informed and meaningful public participation, particularly the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act and the California Public Records Act, by adopting regulations and procedures which, as applied by the Governor and CEC,
 has the effect of significantly amending these LORS to give the siting, construction and operation of powerplants what amounts to a substantial exemption from mandatory statutory requirements--procedural as well as substantive.  Making such amendments should be a legislative function, with full and fair opportunity for public participation and input.  

The way the previously described activities have been carried out not only violate these LORS, but also violate the separation of powers constitutional doctrine, in that the amendments have been and are being made by executive fiat, if not executive intimidation, rather than by submitting the matter to a full-blown legislative and political process, which would require the legislative admission that it is impossible to expedite powerplants while also complying with and maintaining the level of environmental protection and insuring first amendment rights required by LORS concerned with environmental protection, which would subject to careful scrutiny the critical assumption that building new powerplants on an expedited basis is a major necessity in resolving the energy crisis.

The body of evidence supporting these contentions includes, first, FERC's  07-25-01 order (96 FERC, ¶ 61, 117) Granting Motion for Clarification on Mirant’s request allowing generators to exceed their emission runtimes without losing valuable future emission allowances.

“On June 19, 2001, the Commission issued an order which, among other things, denied Mirant's request for rehearing of the must offer requirement contained in the   April 26 Order.[
]  In the June 19 Order, the Commission explained that the April 26 Order does not require generators to run if doing so would violate their certificate or applicable law.   But, the Commission explained, those units are required to run if it involves only the payment of additional amounts to obtain emission credits to permit them to run outside of their emission limitations.  The June 19 Order further clarified that generators should not be exempt from the must-offer requirement absent a showing that running the unit violates a certificate,
 would result in criminal violations, or penalties, or would result in QF units violating their contracts or losing their QF status.  The Commission explained that the incurrence of expenses for obtaining additional emission allowances is not a valid reason to withhold available energy from the ISO's market, since the Commission was providing a mechanism to recover such costs and the Governor of California had issued a series of executive orders, including the most recent order, allowing generators to exceed their emission runtimes without losing valuable future emission allowances.”  (Id. (emphasis added).)
More on IEPA's Unlawful, Unfair or Fraudulent Business Acts

As previously shown and further shown below, IEPA engaged in unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business acts or practices within the meaning of the California Unfair Competition Act, Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 17200-17209.  (See Hewlett v. Squaw Valley Ski Corporation (1997) 54 Cal.App.4th 499.)  This includes, without limitation:


a.
Proposing and pursuing approval of projects that significantly increase the immense risk of harm to health & safety, as well as environmental conditions and resources, without considering or disclosing contingency plans for dealing with reasonably foreseeable problems (e.g., shortages or fluctuations in natural gas availability or prices) in an effort to preserve and maximize profits at the expense of the public and California rate and tax payers.

b.
Inducing public reliance on implied and express claims and assurances, which include that the public, particularly people residing and working nearest the powerplant project sites, the majority of whom are low income, native peoples and peoples-of-color, will not bear a disproportionate share of the cost of these powerplant operations and will be safe from adverse, potentially significant health & safety, environmental and socioeconomic impacts.  These claims were made with actual or constructive knowledge that there is not substantial evidence to support them, and in some cases the claims are utterly false and clearly fraudulent in nature.

The California Parties and IEPA Violated Title VI the Civil Rights Act of 1964

The air emissions from projects approved by the CEC inflict disparate impacts on low-income and minority populations, and low-income and minority children in particular, who are sensitive receptors exposed to these point sources' criteria pollutants emitted 24 hours a day, 7 days a week (i.e., on a "24 & 7" basis). 

These disparate impacts will be further compounded by a relaxation of emission standards by air districts statewide to allow increased emissions from existing power plants, while installing peaking power plants with a waiver from Best Available Control Technology (BACT) requirements. The measures currently under consideration will allow peak emissions to occur during "spare-the-air" days when the air basin is in non-compliance of the 1-hour ozone standards. 

Further compounding this will be the fact that the very producers being given waivers for emission requirements will be allowed to charge “unjust and unreasonable” prices for the power they produce on the spot market or through long term contracts, which will disparately impact low-income and minority populations who will be faced with the choice of paying their electric bills or paying the rent and other necessities, while literally struggling to breathe.

Joinder and Reservation of Rights Regarding Remedies

In joining with other interveners and parties participating in the present or related proceedings in seeking appropriate and just relief from the misconduct and illegalities previously or elsewhere described, and by this reference incorporating all such requested relief as though fully set out here, and in specifically reserving the right to present and request any other remedies deemed appropriate as a result of information provided in these and related proceedings, CARE requests that the provisions be given proper consideration and adopted: 

2.
Refunds should be ordered for all sales in the ISO and PX markets whether the seller is publicly or privately owned.  CARE’s complaint in Docket EL01-65 showed that approximately $2 billion is due to be refunded to California consumers and distributors of power by publicly owned sellers including the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, Bonneville Power Administration, and BC Hydro through its marketer, Powerex.

 
3.
Refunds should be ordered for all markets tainted by the exercise of market power, including all short and long term purchases by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) including but not limited to those in which electric services where commenced covering the refund period 05-01-00 to 06-19-01.

 
4.
DWR’s long-term energy contracts and associated IOU rate schedules submitted to the Commission pursuant to FPA, section 205 (c), should be cancelled and declared void and unenforceable on grounds that include entering into contracts with parties that have violated and are violating California law in regard to the very subject matter of the contracts.  

 
5.
Any certifications, license, permits, or other entitlements given the IEPA or under consideration by the state, particularly the California Energy Commission in regard to the siting, construction or operation of powerplants in California after or while engaging in the unlawful conduct violating California law previously described.  This should specifically include an order that revocation proceedings be initiated and conducted by the appropriate agency or agencies or judicial tribunal.
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� CAlifornians for Renewable Energy, a non-profit public benefit corporation, which is the only citizen group intervener in these FERC proceedings acting for the exclusive benefit and on behalf of the general public.


 


� Independent Energy Producers Association.  (See footnote 4, and accompanying text, below.)





� The California Parties are the State of California, California Electricity Oversight Board, California Public Utilities Commission, California Department of Water Resources (intervener CARE’s alleged IOU “designated representative” in the purchase of power), and Investor Owned Utilities San Diego Gas and Electric Company and Southern California Edison.  Pacific Gas and Electric has continued to act as an independent party in these proceedings.





� IEPA members include those members of an unlawful “trust” identified in Exhibit C of CARE’s original FERC complaint in docket EL01-2.  These power suppliers specifically include Duke Energy, CalEnergy, Enron, Calpine, Dynegy, Reliant, and Mirant (formally known as Southern Company).


� At all times noting that to obtain and maintain certification of powerplants and operations, generators must show compliance with all Laws Ordinances Regulations and Standards (“LORS”).  Obviously, this requirement can not be met by generators that have engaged, are engaging or plan to engage in unlawful operations violating, inter alia, state antitrust and unfair competition legislation.  Moreover, while engaged in past, present or future unlawful operations these entities, individually or as a group, are not allowed to enter into binding contracts, particularly with state or local public agencies.


  


� This is the subject of CARE’s original complaint in FERC docket number EL01-2.





� However, the FERC also claims to lack authority to mandate refunds or other retroactive relief.  This claim is disputed and is or will be the subject of litigation.


� These findings, made by public agencies duly empowered and under an official duty to make them, are conclusive on the issue of whether violations of law have occurred, are occurring or may occur in the future.  The violations may not be disregarded for a particular purpose (e.g., entering into long-term state contracts), at least not without specific legislative or executive action capable of discharging, revoking or otherwise render them null & void.





� Without public disclosure, participation or input, the state then not only entered into contracts with the violators, but also granted or allowed them to retain licenses to construct and operate powerplants within the state, even though such licenses expressly require a showing of compliance with all LORS.


� Pacific Gas & Electric, Southern California Edison and San Diego Gas & Electric.


� “ISO” as quoted herein refers to CAISO.


�  Again (see footnote 8 and accompanying text, above; see also footnotes 5 and 9), these findings by duly empowered agencies under an official duty to make them are conclusive in establishing IEPA's violation of California law thereby rendering IEPA ineligible for entitlements for the construction or operation of powerplants, as well as incapable of lawfully contracting regarding such activities.


� California Energy Commission.


� San Diego Gas & Electric Company v. Sellers of Energy and Ancillary Service (2001) 95 FERC ¶ 61,418 at 61,552-53 (June 19 Order).





� Our use of the term "certificate" extends to environmental operating limitations imposed by governmental authorities, whether in a permit, certificate, or other operating authorization.





� CARE sincerely apologizes for any redundancy or confusion in this presentation.  However, these flaws should not detract from the merit and importance of the issues being raised.  It is substance, not form, that the Commission, in its quasi-adjudicatory role, should be focusing upon.
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